
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
5340

Tuesday 5 February 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Standards and Governance Committee
DATE: 13 February 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Committee Room 1
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

MICHAEL LAWTHER
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Councillor Raffaelli (Chair)
Councillor Mrs Jones (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Ms Ballard
Councillor Beavis
Councillor Blackman
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Hicks

Councillor Johnston
Councillor Mrs Morgan
Councillor Mrs Prickett
Councillor Scard
Councillor Westerby

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Standards and Governance Committee
13 February 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item (s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Committee 
meeting held on 28 November 2018.

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Committee is required to receive a deputation(s) on a 
matter which is before the meeting of the Committee provided that 
notice of the intended deputation and its object shall have been 
received by the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday 8 February 
2019.  The total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal 
shall not exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Committee is required to allow a total of 15 
minutes for questions from Members of the public on matters 
within the terms of reference of the Committee provided that 
notice of such Question(s) shall have been submitted to the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday 8 February 2019)

6.  EXTERNAL AUDIT: CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS 
ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 AND AUDIT PLANNING REPORT 
2018-19 (Pages 5 - 54)

Certification Report 2017-18
The certification of claims and returns annual report summarises the 
findings of our work on the Council’s 2017/18 housing benefit 
subsidy claim. It reports the key messages from the work 
undertaken, including claim amendments which were agreed with 
your officers and details of matters reported to the grant paying 
department in a qualification letter. Our annual report has been 



Standards and Governance Committee
13 February 2019

prepared in line with the requirements of Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA), which oversaw the certification of 
claims and returns for 2017-18.

Audit Planning Report 2018-19
The Audit Planning Report sets out the work that we plan to 
complete to enable us to issue the audit opinion on your financial 
statements, and the value for money conclusion, for 2018/19. The 
audit opinion and value for money work will be completed in line with 
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the 
National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) 
Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements.

7.  INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING STATEMENT FROM 1ST APRIL 
2018  - 4TH FEBRUARY 2019 (Pages 55 - 60)

To table the performance of the Internal Audit Section for 
2018/19 (1st April 2018 – 4th February 2019) against the agreed 
audit plan (March 2018) to the Members with responsibility for 
governance. 

8.  UPDATE REPORT ON THE CURRENT STATUS OF BUSINESS 
CONTINUITY ARRANGEMENTS AND PLANS WITHIN THE 
COUNCIL (Pages 61 - 66)

Report to follow 

9.  CODE OF CONDUCT, LOCAL ASSESSMENT CRITERIA AND 
TERMS OF REFERENCE UPDATE 

To follow. 

10.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Standards and Governance Committee
28 November 2018

1

A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
WAS HELD ON 28 NOVEMBER 2018

Councillors Ms Ballard, Beavis, Rev Blackman, Burgess (Substituting for Scard), Chegwyn, 
Hicks, Johnston, Mrs Jones, Mrs Morgan, Mrs Prickett, Raffaelli and Westerby

18. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

An apology for non attendance was received from Councillor Scard .

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none. 

20. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Standards and Governance Committee 
held on 4 September 2018 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a true and correct 
record.

21. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

22. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

23. EY - ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2017/18 

Consideration was given to a report of the external auditor summarising the findings from 
their 2017/18 audit which was completed in July. It summarised the key messages that 
were reported in the Audit Results Report presented to the Policy and Organisation Board 
on 25 July 2018.

The Committee was advised that the letter provided a summary that was conducted at a 
higher level and aimed at a wider audience than just the Council and that there was no new 
information to that presented to the Policy and Organisation Board in July. 

The Committee was advised that section one of the letter contained the key highlights 
which allowed for an unqualified opinion on the statement to be issued. An unqualified 
value for money conclusion had also been issued. 

The Committee was advised that there had been no issues or requirement of the use of 
wider powers. 

The Committee was advised that section three of the report listed the potential risks and 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Standards and Governance Committee
28 November 2018

2

that found that there were no critical risks or misstatements and that section four covered 
the value for money conclusion and the Committee was advised that there were no key 
risks and that work would continue to monitor the financial standings. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

24. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN UPDATE APRIL 1ST 2018 TO 15TH NOVEMBER 2018 

Consideration was given to the acting head of Audit requesting informing Members of 
the performance of the Internal Audit Section for 2018/19 (1st April 2018 – 15th 
November 2018) against the agreed audit plan (March 2018) to the Members with 
responsibility for governance. 

The Committee was introduced to Paul Somerset who had been covering in the 
absence of the Head of Internal Audit. 

He advised the Committee that there were three elements to the report. 

He advised that the Head of Internal Audit was currently absent and that another auditor 
was due to retire. The Committee was advised that 30% of audits had been completed 
and that 20% were in progress, with 50% remaining. 

The Committee was advised that it was proposed that some changes be made to the 
schedule to allow sufficient work to be undertaken to allow the required opinion to be 
issued. 

The Committee advised that the proposals would not reduce the scope of the coverage, 
but the time required for it to be undertaken. This would be possible as a result of the 
use of a different technology and process that increased the percentage testing 
undertaken in places from 15% to 100%, this in turn provided greater assurance of 
results. 

Members sought reassurance that the reduction in the number of days that housing 
benefit overpayment was audited would not affect the quality of the audit and the 
Committee were advised that this was an instance where improved auditing would take 
place. In addition, the Committee was advised that the previous year’s audit opinion of 
Housing Benefit had been strong. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Committee was advised that audits on rent 
collection could include any rent that the Council collected and that audits on NNDR 
covered any accounts, including those in credit and those that weren’t. 

RESOLVED: 
a. That the Standards and Governance Committee note the performance of 

Internal Audit from 1st April 2018 – 15th November 2018.  

b. That the Committee approve the changes to the audit plan 2018/19

c. That the Committee note the current staffing arrangements in the Internal 
Audit team.



Standards and Governance Committee
28 November 2018

3

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

25. REPORT ON THE CURRENT STATUS OF BUSINESS CONTINUITY 
ARRANGEMENTS AND PLANS WITH THE COUNCIL 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Emergency Planning advising the Board 
of the Council’s statutory responsibilities for Business Continuity arrangements under the 
Civil Contingencies Act, and to advise on the current status of the plans.

The Committee was advised that the outstanding recommendations were as a result of 
workloads. 

The Committee was advised that 90% of the plan was in place and that there were minor 
issues outstanding. 

It was requested that an update be provided to the next meeting of the Committee. 

RESOLVED: That the Committee notes the contents of the report with regard to the current 
status of the Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) for all sections and high risk areas of work 
within the Council.

26. S & G TERMS OF REFERENCE UPDATE 

The Borough Solicitor gave the Committee a verbal update on the progress of Governance 
matters, including the Constitution. The Code of Conduct for Members would be considered 
and updates made to the terms of reference of the Committee.

The Committee was advised that it was important the Constitution remained relevant and it 
was subject to review. The Committee was also advised that the process was underway to 
recruit new Independent Persons. 

27. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

Members requested that thanks be placed on record to John Norman, the Head of 
Accounts, who would be retiring from the Council. 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.25 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee Meeting

Date of Meeting: 13 February 2019
Title: External Audit:

 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual 
Report 2017-18

 Audit Planning Report 2018-19
Author: Kevin Suter
Status: Standards and Governance Committee to consider 

and note the 2017-18 Certification Report and 2018-
19 Audit Plan, and to recommend the 2018-19 Audit 
Plan to the Policy & Organisation Board as Those 
Charged with Governance

Purpose

Certification Report 2017-18
The certification of claims and returns annual report summarises the findings 
of our work on the Council’s 2017/18 housing benefit subsidy claim. It reports 
the key messages from the work undertaken, including claim amendments 
which were agreed with your officers and details of matters reported to the 
grant paying department in a qualification letter. Our annual report has been 
prepared in line with the requirements of Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Limited (PSAA), which oversaw the certification of claims and returns for 
2017-18.

Audit Planning Report 2018-19
The Audit Planning Report sets out the work that we plan to complete to 
enable us to issue the audit opinion on your financial statements, and the 
value for money conclusion, for 2018/19. The audit opinion and value for 
money work will be completed in line with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit 
Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional 
requirements.

Recommendation

 Review and note the conclusions set out in the certification of 
claims and returns annual report 2017/18. 

 Review the Audit Planning Report 2018/19 and note the risks and 
areas of focus we have identified, and our planned response to 
them. 

Agenda Item 6



2

 Recommend the Audit Planning Report 2018/19 to the Policy and 
Organisation Board as those charged with governance.

1 Background

1.1

1.2

Certification Report 2017-18
The PSAA requires us to issue a certification of claims and 
returns annual report. This report summarises the work we have 
carried out to enable us to certify the Council’s 2017/18 housing 
benefit subsidy claim.

Audit Planning Report 2018-19
The National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice requires us to 
communicate details of the audit opinion and value for money 
conclusion risks that we have identified to those charged with 
governance. We have set out the risks that we have identified in 
our Audit Planning Report for 2018/19 together with details of our 
planned response to them.  

2 Report

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2017-18

2.1

2.2

2.3

Scope
Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and 
subsidies from central government and other grant-paying bodies 
and must complete returns providing financial information to 
government departments. In some cases these grant-paying 
bodies and government departments require appropriately 
qualified auditors to certify the claims and returns submitted to 
them.

We checked and certified the housing benefits subsidy claim with 
a total value of £26,269,609, applying the methodology set out by 
the Department for Work and Pensions and PSAA. We met the 
submission deadline for this work. 

Results of work undertaken
We issued a qualification letter in respect of the claim. The 
qualification related to a small number of issues, which are 
required to be reported to the DWP under the prescribed 
methodology for the certification of housing benefit subsidy 
claims. 

We also agreed a small number of amendments to the Council’s 
2017/18 claim with your officers. The amount of subsidy due to 



3

2.4

3

3.1

3.2

4

4.1

the Council increased by £11,443 as a result of these 
amendments

Audit Planning Report 2018-19

Audit Scope
The Audit Planning Report covers the work that we plan to 
perform in order to provide you with: 

 our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of 
Gosport Borough Council give a true and fair view of the 
financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of the income and 
expenditure for the year then ended; and

 a conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office, to the 
extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole 
of Government Accounts return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are 
required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and 
auditing standards.

Risk Assessment

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2017-18
The PSAA requires auditors to report the findings from their work 
on the certification of claims and returns. This report should be 
reviewed as part of the Council’s governance arrangements.

Audit Planning Report 2018-19
The NAO requires auditors to communicate details of the risks 
that we have identified in relation to the audit opinion and value 
for money conclusion to those charged with governance. This 
report should be reviewed as part of the Council’s governance 
arrangements. 

Conclusion

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2017-18
The certification of claims and returns annual report 2017/18 is 
attached for consideration and noting. 

Audit Planning Report 2018-19



4

4.2
The audit planning report for 2018/19 is attached for consideration 
by the Committee, and for recommendation to the Policy and 
Organisation Board as those charged with governance.

Financial Services comments: Both reports have been shared with 
relevant officers for comment before being 
submitted into papers.

Legal Services comments: N/A
Crime and Disorder: N/A
Equality and Diversity: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

N/A

Corporate Plan: N/A
Risk Assessment: N/A
Background papers: N/A
Enclosures: Certification of Claims and Returns Annual 

Report 2017-18

Audit Planning Report 2018-19
Report author/ Lead Officer: Kevin Suter, Associate Partner, Ernst & 

Young



Certification of
claims and returns
annual report
2017-18
Gosport Borough Council

January 2019



2

Members of the Standards and Governance Committee 29 January 2019

Dear Standards and Governance Committee Members

We are pleased to report on our certification and other assurance work. This report summarises the results of our work on Gosport Borough
Council’s 2017-18 claims.

Scope of work
Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and subsidies from central government and other grant-paying bodies and must
complete returns providing financial information to government departments. In some cases these grant-paying bodies and government
departments require appropriately qualified reporting accountants to certify the claims and returns submitted to them.

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims and returns and to prescribe scales of fees for this
work was delegated to the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.
For 2017-18, these arrangements required only the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim. In certifying this we followed a
methodology determined by the Department for Work and Pensions.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Standards and Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you at the Standards and Committee on 13 February 2019.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Gosport Borough Council

Town Hall, High Street

Gosport

Hampshire PO12 1EB



3

Contents

This report is made solely to the Standards and Governance Committee and management of Gosport Borough Council. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Standards and
Governance Committee and management of Gosport Borough Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Standards and Governance Committee and management of Gosport Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It
should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Housing benefits
subsidy claim01 2017-18

certification fees
02



4

Housing benefits subsidy claim01 01



5

Housing benefits subsidy claim

Local Government administers the Government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and can claim subsidies from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP)
towards the cost of benefits paid.
The certification guidance requires reporting accountants to follow a programme of work specified by DWP.  Detailed case testing is carried out on an initial sample of 20
cases per benefit type.  More extensive ‘40+’ or extended testing is undertaken if initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of benefit or compilation of the claim.
40+ testing may also be carried out as a result of errors that have been identified in the certification of previous years claims.
We found errors and carried out extended testing in a number of areas.
Extended and other testing identified errors which the Council amended. They had a small net impact on the claim, as noted above, of £11,443.
We have reported underpayments, uncertainties and the extrapolated value of other errors in a qualification letter. The DWP then decides whether to ask the Council to
carry our further work to quantify the error or to claw back the benefit subsidy paid. We include in this report a summary of the main issues we reported in our
qualification letter, or which led to agreed amendments to the final subsidy claim, as follows:

Non Housing Revenue Account Rent Rebates: Incorrect Earned Income
► Initial testing identified one error, where the Council had incorrectly assessed the claimant’s earned income, resulting in both underpayment and overpayment of

benefit, as a result of multiple errors in the same case. As there is no eligibility for subsidy for benefit that has not been paid, the underpayment was not classified as
an error for subsidy purposes and has no impact on the claim.

► As the total population of non housing revenue account rent rebates claims with earned income was less than 100, extended testing was undertaken on the full
population. This identified one further error leading to overpayment of benefit.

► The total value of overpayment errors was below £0.50. As such, no amendment was required to the final subsidy claim. The over and underpayments identified were
reported as observations in our qualification letter.

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for certification £26,258,166

Amended/Not amended Amended – subsidy increased by £11,443  (final certified value £26,269,609)

Qualification letter Yes

Fee – 2017-18

Fee – 2016-17

£14,121

£10,801



6

Housing benefits subsidy claim

Housing Revenue Account Rent Rebates: Incorrect Pension Income
► Initial testing identified one error, where the Council had incorrectly assessed the claimant’s pension income, resulting in underpayment of benefit.
► Our extended testing identified three further errors, two resulting in overpayment of benefit and one resulting in underpayment of benefit. As there is no eligibility for

subsidy for benefit that has not been paid, the underpayments were not classified as errors for subsidy purposes and have no impact on the claim. The extrapolated
impact of the overpayment errors results in overpayment of subsidy of £84. This was reported in our qualification letter.

Housing Revenue Account Rent Rebates: Incorrect Passporting
► Initial testing identified one error, where the Council had incorrectly assessed a claim as passported (automatically entitled to full housing benefit as a result of other

benefits received) for one period, resulting in overpayment of benefit.
► Our extended testing did not identify any further errors. The extrapolated impact of the initial sample error results in overpayment of subsidy of £8,997. This was

reported in our qualification letter.

Review of manual adjustments made in compiling the subsidy claim
► Our review of manual adjustments made in compiling the subsidy claim identified a small number of casting errors, resulting in incorrect entries in the draft subsidy

claim form.
► Agreed amendments were made to the final subsidy claim as a result, which increased total subsidy claimed by £11,443.



7

2017-18 certification fees02 01V
F
M



8

The PSAA determine a scale fee each year for the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim. For 2017-18, these scale fees were published by the Public
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA’s) and are available on their website (www.psaa.co.uk).

2017-18 certification feesV
F
M

Claim or return 2017-18 2017-18 2016-17

Actual fee
£

Indicative fee
£

Actual fee
£

Housing benefits subsidy claim £14,121 £16,701 £10,801

The indicative scale fee for 2017/18 of £16,701 is based on the final fee charged in 2015/16.

Our final fee for 2017/18 is £14,121, a decrease of £2,580 arising from:

• Council housing benefits staff undertaking the initial case testing in 2017/18, reducing the total audit team hours required to complete the certification. Initial case
testing had been undertaken by Ernst & Young staff in 2015/16.

We have discussed and agreed the overall fee reduction and final fee with the Borough Treasurer.  The final fee is subject to agreement by Public Sector Auditor
Appointments Ltd.



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gosport Borough
Council
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2019

January 2019



2

28 January 2019

Dear Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the
2018/19 audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of
Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other
professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee/Board’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 13 February 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Gosport Borough Council
Town Hall, High Street
Gosport
Hampshire PO12 1EB



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-
of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors
and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board , and management of Gosport Borough Council those matters we are required to
state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy
& Organisation Board , and management of Gosport Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our
2018/19 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money Risks03

V
F
M



4

Overview of our 2018/19 audit
strategy01 01



5

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk No change in risk or
focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition, through
inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

Fraud risk No change in risk;
refocused

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified
by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by
the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have assessed the risk is most
likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Valuation of Land and Buildings Other risk No change in risk or
focus

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties
(IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

Pension Liability Valuation Other risk No change in risk or
focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
Hampshire County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of
management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

New accounting standards Other risk Increase in risk or
focus

The CIPFA Code of Practice for 2018/19 confirms that the local government
bodies will implement International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) 9 –
Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers this
year.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Standards &
Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks
identified in the current year.



6

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£1.29m
Performance

materiality

£0.97m Audit
differences

£64.5k

Materiality has been set at £1.291m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £0.968m, which represents 75% of planning materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account and collection fund) greater than
£64.5k.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the
attention of the Policy & Organisation Board.



7

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Gosport Borough Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of the
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

§ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

§ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
§ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
§ The quality of systems and processes;
§ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and
§ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.



8

Audit risks02 01



9

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

We will:
• Identify fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Enquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in

place to address those risks.
• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of

management’s processes over fraud.
• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to

address the risk of fraud.
• Perform mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified

fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments
in the preparation of the financial statements.

• Review accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
• Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error*

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)

What will we do?

We will:
• Test PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds, to ensure they are

appropriately supported by documentary evidence, and that the
expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature; and

• Seek to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals
transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE additions or
from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the
year.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure, as there is an incentive to
reduce expenditure which is funded from Council
Tax.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition,
through inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure*

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of
fraud in revenue and expenditure
recognition is most likely to occur
through the inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure. This would have the
impact of reducing revenue
expenditure and increasing
additions to Property, Plant and
Equipment.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;
• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g.

floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key
assumptions used by the valuers;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5
year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment
Property. We will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have
occurred and whether these have been communicated to the valuers;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the remaining asset
base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and
• Test to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial

statements.

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Hampshire County Council. The Council’s pension fund
deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this
liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2018
this totalled £40 million. The information disclosed is based on the IAS
19 report issued to the Council by the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake
the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Hampshire County Council Pension Fund,  to obtain assurances

over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Gosport Borough Council;
• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Aon Hewitt) including the assumptions they

have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

IFRS 9 financial instruments
This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year and will change:

• How financial assets are classified and measured;
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the
2018/19 CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting provides
guidance on the application of IFRS 9.

We will:
• Assess the Council’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;

• Consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
• Review new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets; and
• Check additional disclosure requirements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year.

The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of
income to the meeting of those performance obligations.

The 2018/19 CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting
provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful
flow diagram and commentary on the main sources of LG revenue and
how they should be recognised.

The impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as large
revenue streams like council tax, non domestic rates and government
grants will be outside the scope of IFRS 15. However where that
standard is relevant, the recognition of revenue will change and new
disclosure requirements introduced.

We will:
• Assess the Council’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19.

• Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the standard is
relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it satisfies a performance
obligation; and

• Check additional disclosure requirements.



13

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M



14

Value for Money
Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:

§ Take informed decisions;
§ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
§ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders.

This has resulted in the identification of no significant risks at the planning stage of our audit, but we will keep
this assessment under review and update the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation
Board as soon as possible if risks are identified during the remainder of our audit.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Informed
decision making

Working with
partners and
third parties

Sustainable
resource

deployment



15

Audit materiality04 01



16

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2018/19 has been set at £1.29m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have set materiality using gross
revenue expenditure as our expectation is that users of the Council’s accounts are
focussed on how it uses its resources to provide services to local people. We have used
2% based on our assessment of the Council’s financial position, levels of public
interest, lack of planned reorganisations and sources of borrowing. We have provided
supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£64.5m
Planning

materiality

£1.29m

Performance
materiality

£0.97m
Audit

differences

£64.5k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£0.968m which represents 75% of planning materiality. The rationale for
using 75% is based on the anticipation of identifying few or no errors during
the audit. This expectation has been built on our experience of the Council
in prior years.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account
and collection fund. Other uncorrected misstatements, such as
reclassifications and misstatements in the cashflow statement and
movement in reserves statement or disclosures, and corrected
misstatements will be communicated to the extent that they merit the
attention of the Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Specific materiality – We have also set a materiality of £1k for
remuneration disclosures, related party transactions, members’ allowances
and exit packages, which reflects our understanding that an amount less
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation
Board confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, these materiality and reporting
levels.



17

Scope of our audit05 01



18

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy



19

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit, as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Policy & Organisation Board.

Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Head of Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports,
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial
statements, the Narrative Statement or the Annual Governance Statement.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)



20

Earlier deadline for production of the financial statements

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. From that year the timetable for the
preparation and approval of accounts will be brought forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared by 31 May and the publication of the accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide risks for both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements:

• The Council now has less time to prepare the financial statements and supporting working papers. Risks to the Council include changes to the finance team during 2018/19.
• As your auditor, we have a more significant peak in our audit work and a shorter period to complete the audit. Risks for auditors relate to delivery of all audits within same

compressed timetable. Slippage at one client could potentially put delivery of others at risk.

To mitigate this risk we will require:
• good quality draft financial statements and supporting working papers by the agreed deadline;
• appropriate Council staff to be available throughout the agreed audit period; and
• complete and prompt responses to audit questions.

If you are unable to meet key dates within our agreed timetable, we will notify you of the impact on the timing of your audit, which may be that we postpone your audit until later
in the summer and redeploy the team to other work to meet deadlines elsewhere.

Where additional work is required to complete your audit, due to additional risks being identified, additional work being required as a result of scope changes, or poor audit
evidence, we will notify you of the impact on the fee and the timing of the audit. Such circumstances may result in a delay to your audit while we complete other work elsewhere.

To support the Council we will:
• Work with the Council to engage early to  facilitate early substantive testing where appropriate.
• Provide an early review on the Council’s streamlining of the Statement of Accounts where non-material disclosure notes are removed.
• Facilitate faster close workshops to provide an interactive forum for Local Authority accountants and auditors to share good practice and ideas to enable us all to achieve a

successful faster closure of accounts for the 2018/19 financial year.
• Work with the Council to improve the use of EY Client Portal, this will:

• Streamline our audit requests through a reduction of emails and improved means of communication;
• Provide on –demand visibility into the status of audit requests and the overall audit status;
• Reduce risk of duplicate requests; and
• Provide better security of sensitive data.

• Agree the team and timing of each element of our work with you.
• Agree the supporting working papers that we require to complete our audit.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)



21

Audit team06 01



22

Audit team

Audit team
Audit team structure:

Kevin Suter
Associate Partner
ksuter@uk.ey.com

David White
Manager

dwhite@uk.ey.com

Shabbir Hussain
Senior

shabbir.hussain@uk.ey.com

Working together with the Council

We are working together with officers to
identify continuing improvements in
communication and processes for the
2018/19 audit.

We will continue to keep our audit
approach under review to streamline it
where possible.

Shabbir Hussain has joined the audit as Senior. Shabbir has worked for EY for 5 years, leading teams across a range of clients.

Changes to the audit team



23

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

Management’s valuation experts:

- Savills (UK) Limited as valuers for Housing Revenue Account properties

- Capita Property & Infrastructure as valuers for General Fund properties and investment properties.

Pensions disclosure PwC as consulting actuary appointed by the NAO, and EY internal pensions specialists
Aon Hewitt – Actuary to Hampshire Pension Fund

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.



24

Audit timeline07 01



25

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and we will
discuss them with the Committee/Board Chairs as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Walkthrough of key systems and
processes

November/December

Risk assessment and setting of scopes January

February Standards & Governance Committee Audit Planning Report

Certification Report
Interim audit testing March Policy & Organisation Board Audit Planning Report

April

May

June

Year end audit

Audit Completion procedures

July Policy & Organisation Board Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates
August Annual Audit Letter



26

Independence08 01



27

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.
► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply

more restrictive independence rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit

services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;

and
► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction



28

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.
At the time of writing, no non-audit services have been undertaken, therefore the current ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees is zero. No additional safeguards are
required.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.



29

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2018

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here:
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018



30

Appendices09 01



31

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee
2018/19

Scale fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 40,844 40,844 53,044
Certification of claims and
returns (housing benefits) - - 14,121*

Total fees 40,844 40,844 67,165

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

* The total includes a proposed scale fee variation of -£2,580 (amount to be returned to the Council), in relation to a reduction in work carried out in 2017/18 in
comparison with the year on which the scale fee was based (2015/16). This reduction in work was due to Council officers undertaking the initial case testing in
2017/18 (with re-performance by the audit team). The fee variation has been agreed with management but remains subject to agreement with PSAA.

Our 2018/19 Code work includes additional planned procedures highlighted in section two of this report to address the new accounting requirements of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers. As at the date of our planning report the Council is yet to evidence their assessment
of the impact of these standards, and so we cannot currently quantify the expected scale fee variation for these additional procedures. We will agree this with
management, depending on the identified impact of the new standards. Any additional fee will be subject to approval by the PSAA.

To obtain sufficient assurance over housing benefits expenditure and subsidy income in the Council’s financial statements, we will need to undertake some
elements of the work which also form part of the housing benefit subsidy claim certification process. This work would previously have been covered by the
certification fee and used additionally to provide assurance for the main audit. As we are no longer the reporting accountant for the Council’s subsidy claim, we
will need to consider the requirement for a scale fee variation to cover the performance of this work as part of the main audit for 2018/19.

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to
the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal
objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.



32

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Standards & Governance Committee and  Policy & Organisation Board
of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both
parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Standards & Governance Committee and
Policy & Organisation Board.



33

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Corrected misstatements that are significant
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Policy & Organisation Board to determine whether they have knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report



34

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence

Audit planning report
Audit results report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Policy & Organisation Board into possible instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that
the Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report



35

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Reading other information published with the financial statements, and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our

understanding and the financial statements; and
• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines:
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Purpose

To table the performance of the Internal Audit Section for 2018/19 (1st April 2018 – 4th February 
2019) against the agreed audit plan (March 2018) to the Members with responsibility for 
governance. 

Recommendations

a. That the Standards and Governance Committee note the performance of Internal 
Audit from 1st April 2018 – 4th February 2019.  

1. Background & Purpose

1.1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Standards and Governance Committee 
with an overview of internal audit activity against assurance work completed in 
accordance with the approved internal audit plan. Members of this Committee 
approved the 2018/19 Annual Audit on the 28th March 2018 which consisted of 30 
audit assignments.  

1.1.2 There are now 23 planned audit assignments for 2018/19, as agreed by the 
committee in November 2018.

2. Report

2.1 Internal Audit staffing arrangements update February 2019

2.1.1 Since early September 2018, the Head of Internal Audit for Gosport Borough Council 
and Test Valley Borough Council, has been absent from work due to sickness. The 
Head of Audit remains absent at the current time. Cover for the role is still being 
provided by Portsmouth City Council's Deputy Chief Internal Auditor.

2.1.2 The Internal Audit team is currently carrying the vacant Principal Auditor post and 
plans are being progressed to review the requirements of this role with a view to 
recruiting to the post.

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee
Date of Meeting: 28th November 2018
Title: Internal Audit Monitoring Statement from 1st April 

2018  – 4th February 2019
Author: Deputy Chief Internal Auditor PCC covering for the 

Head of Internal Audit
Status: FOR NOTING

Agenda Item 7



3.0 Internal Audit Plan Status - 2018/19

Percentage of the approved plan completed

3.1     56% of the annual plan has been completed or is in draft report format. 13% in the 
planning stage, 9% is work in progress with 22% yet to commence. Appendix A 
shows the completed audits for 2018/19 to date.

3.1.1 With 56% of the Audit Plan complete, the current years audit plan is still behind 
schedule but there has been a significant improvement. There is confidence that 
relevant audit testing will be complete by 31st March 2019 to allow for an annual audit 
opinion to be given.

Not Started
 22%

In Progress
 9%

Draft
 13%

Issued
 43%

Planning
 13%

Audit Plan 2018/19 Progress to February 2019

Reactive Work

3.2 Reactive work undertaken by Internal Audit in 2018/19 includes

 9 investigations
 5 items of advice, (where the advice exceeds an hours work)

Recommendations

3.3 Of the 2018/19 audits completed the number of recommendations within each 
category have been:

 0 critical recommendations
 0 essential recommendations
 16 important recommendations
 2 advisory recommendations



Ongoing Areas

3.4 The following nine areas are on-going areas of work carried out by Internal Audit

 Investigations
 Anti-money laundering monitoring and reporting
 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) – authorisations & policy 

updates
 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by 

the Cabinet Office
 National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow ups
 Standards and Governance Committee reporting and attendance
 Audit planning and consultation
 Financial and Contract Procedure Rules waivers
 Risk management

3.5 The Internal Audit service is currently being externally assessed in relation to 
compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The standards 
require internal audit services to conduct annual self-assessments and every 5 
years, commission an external review. The results of this review will be presented at 
the next committee meeting.

4 Risk Assessment

4.1 The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the overall risk exposure in 
the Council’s operations and provides a high degree of assurance to management in 
placing reliance on the adequacy of internal controls within their Services. 

5 Conclusion

5.1 That the Committee note the progress of the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 as at 4th 
February 2019.

Financial Services 
comments:
Legal Services comments:
Crime and Disorder: Nil
Equality and Diversity: Nil
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 
service. 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering 
an effective and high quality joint internal audit service.

Risk Assessment: Section 4
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A - Audits completed in 2018/19

Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Somerset Deputy Chief Internal Auditor PCC





Appendix A - Audits Completed since last meeting in November 2018 

Audit Title Critical 
Rec.

Essential
 Rec.

Important  
Rec.

Advisory 
Rec.

Total 
Recs.

Audit
Assurance

Summary

Accounts Payable - - - - 0 Strong No issues.
Rented Accommodation in 
the Private Sector

- - 10 0 10 Good 10 Important issues which focused on the 
strategy of the scheme with some 
weaknesses which if addressed can 
strengthen the controls in place

Open Market 0 0 1 - 1 Good One issue highlighted relating to a lack of 
insurance cover relating to the market 
takings



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE BOARD
Date of Meeting: WEDNESDAY, 13 FEBRUARY 2019
Title: UPDATE REPORT ON THE CURRENT STATUS OF 

BUSINESS CONTINUITY ARRANGEMENTS AND 
PLANS WITHIN THE COUNCIL

Author: HEAD OF EMERGENCY PLANNING
Status: FOR INFORMATION

Purpose

To update the Board on the progress made to the outstanding 
actions following the Internal Audit review audit undertaken in quarter 
2 of 2018.

Recommendation

That the Board notes the contents of the report with regard to the 
update on the outstanding actions with regard to  Business 
Continuity Plans (BCPs) for all sections and high risk areas of work 
within the Council. 

1.0 Background

1.1 The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 places a duty on all Category 1 
responders (Gosport Borough Council as a Local Authority is 
designated as a Category 1 responder along with the ‘blue light 
services’) to “assess, plan and advise” with regard to Contingency 
Planning. 

1.2 This duty requires the Council to:
 assess the risk of an emergency occurring;
 assess the risk of an emergency making it necessary or 

expedient for the body to perform any of its functions;
 maintain plans for the purpose of ensuring, that if an 

emergency occurs the body is able to continue to perform its 
functions;

 arrange for the publication of all or part of assessments made 
and plans maintained to prevent an emergency; reduce, 
control or mitigate the effects of an emergency; or enable 
other action to be taken in connection with an emergency; and 
to maintain arrangements to warn the public and to provide 
information and advice to the public if an emergency is likely to 
occur or has occurred.

Agenda Item 8



2

1.3 The definition of an “emergency” under the legislation is very wide 
ranging:

a) “an event or situation which threatens serious damage to 
human welfare in the United Kingdom or in a part or region;

b) “an event or situation which threatens serious damage to the 
environment of the United Kingdom or of a Part or region, or;

c) War, or terrorism, which threatens serious damage to the 
security of the United Kingdom.”

1.4 The Emergency Planning undertaken within the Council is split into 
three distinct parts:

1) Emergency Planning/Civil Contingencies – external plans with 
partners organisation on both generic and site specific risks to 
the population of the Borough;

2) Business Continuity – internal plans to ensure the continued 
provision of services to the population and service users of the 
Borough;

3) Disaster Recovery – internal plans to ensure the co-ordinated 
response to a major incident or disaster that affects GBC 
infrastructure (e.g. loss of part or all of the Town Hall building 
to staff, partners and the general public).

1.5 Business Continuity is all about having a plan a deal with difficult 
situations, so that the organisation can continue to function with as 
little disruption as possible.

1.6 Business Continuity Management is best defined by the Business 
Continuity Institute as:
“A holistic management process that identifies potential impacts that 
threaten an organisation and provides a framework for building 
resilience with the capability for an effective response that safeguard 
the interests of its key stakeholders, reputation, brand and value-
creating activities”.

1.7 There are currently 28 Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) for Sections 
and high risk teams (Cashier and Reception, Land Charges, Press 
and PR and Reprographics teams) within the Council.

1.8 The full list of Sections and services within GBC that currently have 
BCPs are:

 Accountancy Section;
 Asset and Facilities Management Section;
 Building Control Section;
 Cashiers and Reception Services Team;
 Civic Team;
 Conservation and Design Section;
 Corporate Policy and Community Safety Section;
 Customer Services & Administration Team;
 Democratic Services Section;



3

 Development Control Section
 Economic Prosperity, Tourism and Culture Section;
 Electoral Registration Section
 Environmental Health Section
 Housing Benefit Section;
 Housing Finance and Support Services Section;
 Housing Operational Services Section
 Housing Options Section;
 Internal Audit Section;
 Information Technology Section;
 Land Charges Team;
 Legal Services Section
 Local Taxation/Council Tax Section;
 Pay and Central Services Section;
 Personnel Services Section;
 Planning Policy Section;
 Press and PR
 Reprographics Team;
 Streetscene Section;
 Transport and Traffic Management Section.

2.0 Report

2.1 The report to the Standards and Governance Board on 28 November 
2018, in paragraphs 2.3 through to 2.6 outlined the number of 
recommendations which resulted in an Action Plan from the 2017 
Internal Audit review, and also the 2018 follow-up review.

2.2 The report stated that:
“8 actions have been completed. 6 agreed actions are outstanding, 3 
agreed actions are underway and 1 was not agreed in the original 
audit.”

2.3 As the previous report also states, with regard in summary to the 
outstanding actions:

 Head of Emergency Planning
o Review of nominated corporate Business Continuity 

back-up site if Town Hall accommodation is lost;
o Completion of the next cycle of 6 month BCP updates;
o Circulation of the updated BCP template to all Services 

for use and completion as their next cycle update;
o Review of BCP Team Leaders requirements for home 

working for their teams should their plan be invoked;
o Report to S&G Board on Business Continuity planning, 

highlight of trends, concerns etc. 
 Head of Streetscene

o Review of BCP staff  call out tree;
o Review of BCP team contacts;
o Completion of the BCP Appendices with details added 



4

as required by the corporate template/plan.

2.4 With regard to the outstanding actions for the Head of Emergency 
Planning, I can provide the following progress and updates:

2.4.1 Review of nominated corporate Business Continuity back-up 
site if Town Hall accommodation is lost
The review has been completed, and the arrangement for the use of 
a room within the PCC Civic Offices was not deemed to be suitable 
should a major percentage of the Town Hall in Gosport be 
unavailable for whatever reason, and therefore The Gosport Leisure 
Centre has been nominated as the Council’s Business Continuity 
Centre, and a data link is currently being installed between the 
Leisure Centre and the Council’s Data Centre, and the current 
timeline is that this will be available from 1 April 2019.
This action is now: completed.

2.4.2 Completion of the next cycle of 6 month BCP updates
This action was cancelled to enable 2.4.3 and 2.4.4 to be completed.
This action is now: cancelled.

2.4.3 Circulation of the updated BCP template to all Services for use 
and completion as their next cycle update
The updated BCP template for Plan Owners was awaiting the 
confirmation of the Business Continuity Centre, so that it could be 
included within the document to assist the Plan Owners with their 
documentation and planning to provide continuity of services.
This action is now: in progress, and the revised template is due for 
circulation to plan owners on commencing 4 March 2019.

2.4.4 Review of BCP Team Leaders requirements for home working 
for their teams should their plan be invoked
The updated BCP now includes new appendices C3, C4 to include 
both contact details for all members of staff within the Section/service 
including temporary and agency staff and apprentices; and also a 
list/log of staff who currently have either full/secure access to GBC 
network via a VPN connection, those which have limited remote 
access via tablets (e.g. iPads) or smart phones, those who have 
access to e-mails only via the OWA system, and those staff that have 
no access remotely to anything.
This action is now: in progress, as the revised template is due for 
circulation to plan owners on commencing 4 March 2019.

2.4.5 Report to S&G Board on Business Continuity planning, highlight 
of trends, concerns etc.
The report to S&B Board in November 2018 included the current 
industry and service sector specific top threats with regard to 
Business Continuity.
This action is now: completed.

2.5 With regard to the outstanding actions for the Head of Streetscene, I 
can provide the following progress and updates:

2.5.1 Review of BCP staff call out tree
No progress has been made on this action, due to the administrative 
requirements following the Review of Streetscene services in 



5

November 2018, and the resulting employment and job evaluation 
processes
This action is still outstanding. Projected completion of this action is 
set as 28 June 2019

2.5.2 Review of BCP team contacts.
No progress has been made on this action, due to the administrative 
requirements following the Review of Streetscene services in 
November 2018, and the resulting employment and job evaluation 
processes
This action is still outstanding. Projected completion of this action is 
set as 28 June 2019.

2.5.3 Completion of the BCP Appendices with details added as 
required by the corporate template.
No progress has been made on this action, due to the administrative 
requirements following the Review of Streetscene services in 
November 2018, and the resulting employment and job evaluation 
processes
This action is still outstanding. Projected completion of this action is 
set as 28 June 2019.

Financial Implications: None
Legal Implications: Contained in the report
Crime and Disorder: None
Equality and Diversity: No implications identified
Equality Impact Assessment: N/A
Service Improvement Plan: None
Corporate Plan: This process aligns with the Strategic 

Priority to ‘Deliver effective services’
Risk Assessment: Risks have been assessed by the Head of 

Emergency Planning as part of his normal 
role and responsibilities, and also by the 
Internal Audit team when carrying out their 
Internal Audit planned reviews

Background papers: Report to the Standards and Governance  
Board on 28 November 2018.

Appendices: None
Report author/Lead Officer: Graeme Jesty



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS
Part 1: General Provisions and Interpretation 

Introduction

This Code of Conduct is adopted by Gosport Borough Council ("the Council") 
pursuant to its statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by 
Members and Co-opted Members ("Members") of the Council.

This Code is based on and is consistent with the following principles:

SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 
interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits 
for themselves, their family, or their friends.

INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any 
financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to 
influence them in the performance of their official duties.

OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public 
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and 
benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.

ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and 
actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is 
appropriate to their office.

OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the 
decisions and actions they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and 
restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests 
relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a 
way that protects the public interest.

LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these principles 
by leadership and example.

General obligations of Members ("Member")

1. You must treat others with respect.

2. You must not bully any person.

3. You must not intimidate, or try to intimidate, anyone who has complained about you 
or who may be involved with a complaint about you.

Agenda Item 9



PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

4. You must not do anything which compromises the impartiality of the Authority’s 
officers.

5. You must not disclose confidential information (other than in very limited 
circumstances permitted by law, and following consultation with the Authority’s 
Monitoring Officer).

6. You must not prevent a person from gaining access to information to which they are 
entitled.

7. You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing your office or Authority into disrepute.

8. You must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer 
on or secure for yourself or any other person an advantage or disadvantage.

9. You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the 
Authority, act in accordance with the Authority’s reasonable requirements, and 
ensure that the resources are not used improperly for political purposes.

10. When reaching decisions, you must have regard to relevant advice from the 
Authority’s officers, and give reasons for decisions.

11. You must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 
under the Local Government Act 1986 or otherwise1.

12. You should not lobby other members where you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in a matter.

Scope

This Code applies to all Members of the Council when acting in their official 
capacity, or when giving the impression that they are acting as a representative of 
the Council.

Where a Member is a member of more than one local authority, but acting on behalf 
of the Council, such Member is, for the avoidance of doubt, bound by this Code of 
Conduct.

1
"Code of recommended practice in local authority publicity" issued under Section 2 and 4 of the Local Government Act 1986.

From 30th March 2014 the Secretary of State has power to require specified local authorities to comply with the Code.



PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

Part 2: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests ("DPI")

              Introduction

A DPI is an interest falling within the Schedule set out at Paragraph 3 below of:

2.1       Yourself; or

2.2      Your spouse or civil partner, or someone you are living with as if you were
                         husband and wife or civil partners, where you are aware that that other 
                         person has the interest.

              Interpretation

In the Schedule set out at Paragraph 3 below, the following words or expressions 
mean as follows:

2.3     ‘the Act’ means the Localism Act 2011;

2.4      ‘body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest’ means a firm in           
      which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the   
      relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant 
      person has a beneficial interest;

2.5      ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial 
      and provident society;

2.6 ‘land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which 
does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with 
another) to occupy the land or to receive income;

2.7 ‘Member’ includes a co-opted member;

2.8 ‘relevant authority’ means Gosport Borough Council of which the councillor 
is a member;

2.9 ‘relevant period’ means the period of 12 months ending with the day on 
which the councillor gives a notification for the purposes of Section 30(1) or 
Section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act;

2.10 ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, 
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial 
Services and Markets Act 2001 and other securities of any description, other 
than money deposited with a building society.



PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

DPI Schedule

Subject                                Prescribed description

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union 
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992(2).

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant 
person (or a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest) and the relevant authority:
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area 
of the relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land 
in the area of the relevant authority for a month or 
longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Councillor’s knowledge):
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant 

person has a beneficial interest.

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the relevant authority) made or 
provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by the councillor in carrying out 
duties as a Member, or towards the election expenses 
of the councillor.



PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

Securities    Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
(a) that body (to the Councillor’s knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of the relevant 
authority; and (b) either:
(i) the total nominal value of the securities 

exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more 
than one class, the total nominal value of the 
shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that class.



PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

Part 3: Registration and Disclosure of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests ("DPI")

Obligations

3.1      You must, within 28 days of taking office as a Member of the Council, supply 
                   the Council’s Monitoring Officer with details of any DPI as set out at Part 3 of 
                  this Code.

1.1 You must also, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new DPI notify 
Gosport Borough Council's Monitoring Officer of any change.

1.2 If you have an interest included on the Register of Members’ Interests, you 
must disclose this interest at any meeting of the Council, its Committees at 
which you are present and participating in the business.
Where an interest is a ‘sensitive interest’2 you need only disclose the fact that 
you have a DPI in the matter being considered and do not need to disclose
details of the interest itself.

1.3 If you have not yet registered a DPI, then you must also disclose the interest 
to any meeting of Gosport Borough Council, its Boards or Committees at 
which you are present where you have such a DPI in any matter being 
considered.

1.4 Unless a dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
meeting where that DPI is required to be disclosed (this would include 
making a deputation), discussed, voted on, or discharge any function related 
to any matter in which you have a DPI and must withdraw from the room 
where the meeting considering the business is being held, unless a 
dispensation3 has been granted by the Monitoring Officer. 

2 A ‘sensitive interest’ is described in the Localism Act 2011 as a member or co-opted member of an authority having an 
interest (disclosable pecuniary interest or otherwise), and the nature of the interest being such that the Member or Co- 
Opted Member, and the Authority’s Monitoring Officer, consider that disclosure of the details of the interest could lead to 
the Member or Co-Opted Member, or a person connected with the Member or Co-Opted Member, being subject to 
violence or intimidation. 
3Dispensation procedure. Where a Councillor considers that a dispensation is required that application should be 
brought by the Monitoring Officer to the next meeting of the Standards and Governance Committee for consideration 
where it is not possible to do so and comply with the rules in relation to the access to information for meetings, the 
Councillor may apply to the MO who may grant the dispensation if the MO considers this to be appropriate in 
consultation with the Chairman of Standards and Governance Committee 



6February 2019

PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

Part 4

4 Personal interests
4.1 You have a personal interest in the business of the Council when it 

relates to or is likely to affect:

a any body of which you are a member or in a position of general 
control or management, and to any outside body which you are 
appointed or nominated by the Council.

b any body of which you are a member or in a position of general 
control or management

i exercising functions of a public nature; 
ii directed to charitable purposes; or
iii one of whose principal purposes includes the influence 
of public opinion or policy (including any political party or 
trade union);

b any employment or business carried on by you other than for 
profit or gain;

c any person or body who employs you, or who has appointed 
you, other than for profit or gain;

d the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift 
or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £50 in the last 
three years; 

4.2 You also have a personal interest in the business of the Council when 
a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as 
affecting your well-being or financial position, or the well-being or 
financial position of a relevant person (as defined at paragraph 4.3 
below), to a greater extent than the majority of other council tax 
payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral ward within the 
administrative area of the Council affected by the decision;

4.3 In Paragraph 4.2, a “relevant person” is:

a your spouse or civil partner, or someone you are living with as if 
you were husband and wife or civil partners, where you are aware 
that that other person has the interest; or

b another member of your family, or any person with whom you 
have a close association, where you are aware that that other 
person has the interest; or

c any person or body who employs or has appointed such 



7February 2019

PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

persons, any firm in which they are a partner, or any company of 
which they are directors; or

d any person or body in whom to the Member’s knowledge such 
persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000: or

e any body of a type described in paragraph 4.1a or 4.1b above.



7February 2019

PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

Part 5

    Disclosure of Personal Interests

                       5.1          Subject to paragraphs 5.2 to 5.3 below, where you have a personal interest 
                                      in any business of the Council you must disclose this interest at any 
                                          meeting of the Council, Boards or Committees (including joint committees 
                                          and sub-committees) at which you are present. Such interest should be 
                                        disclosed at the commencement of the consideration of the business or 
                                      when the interest becomes apparent.

             5.2        The requirement to declare a personal interest only applies where you 
                         are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of the 
                         personal interest.

            5.3        Disclosure of a personal interest does not affect the ability of the Member to 
                         participate in discussion or vote on the relevant item, providing it is not a 
                         disclosable pecuniary interest.  

Part 6

               Prejudicial Interests

    Definition of Prejudicial Interest.

Subject to paragraph 7.2 below, where you have a personal interest in 
any business of the Council, or Monitoring Officer where appropriate 
you also have a prejudicial interest in that business when the interest 
is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant 
facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

6.1      Limitation on extent of prejudicial interests

You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the Council 
where that business-:

a does not affect your financial position, or the financial position 
of a body or relevant person as described in Part 4 of this 
Code; or

b does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to you or a body 
or relevant person as described in Part 4 of this Code; or

c relates to the functions of the Council in respect of:-

i housing, where you are a tenant of the Council provided 
that those functions do not relate particularly to your 



8February 2019

PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

tenancy or lease;

ii statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security 
Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where you are 
in receipt of or are entitled to the receipt of such pay;

iii an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members; 
iv any ceremonial honour given to Members; and

v setting council tax or a precept under the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992.



9February 2019

PART 5 - SCHEDULE 19

Part 7

                                   Effect of Prejudicial Interests on Participation

7.1 Unless a dispensation has been granted by the Council’s Standard’s 
and Governance Committee or the Monitoring Officer, you may not 
participate in any discussion of, vote on, or discharge any function 
related to any matter in which you have a personal interest which is 
also a prejudicial interest (as set out at Part 6 of this Code), and must 
as soon as it becomes apparent that you have such an interest (save 
for in circumstances set out at paragraph  7.2                                       
below) withdraw from the room where the meeting considering the 
business is being held, and must not seek improperly to influence a 
decision about that business. 

7.2 Without prejudice to paragraph 7.1 above, where you have a 
prejudicial interest in any business of the Council you may, 
notwithstanding such prejudicial interest, attend such meeting for 
the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to such business, provided members of the 
public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, 
whether under a statutory right or otherwise.

7.3 For the avoidance of doubt the procedure in paragraph 7.2 above 
cannot be used by the Member where the interest comes within the 
statutory definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

7.4 In any case where paragraph 7.2 above applies, you must withdraw 
from the room immediately after making representations, answering 
questions, or giving evidence.

 
       Part 8  

                                Gifts and Hospitalities 

8.1      A Member shall enter into the authority’s register of interests the     
                                 receipt of any gift or hospitality where the Member estimates the  
                                 value to be at least £50 within 28 days of receipt. 



This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE
Membership - 12 Councillors
Terms of Reference

1        In respect of standards matters the Committee will have the following roles 
          and functions:  

a) promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Councillors  

b) assisting Councillors to observe the Code of Conduct   

c) monitoring the operation of the Code of Conduct   

d) to arrange training for Councillors, Independent Members and Officers on 
matters relating to the Council’s Code of Conduct and governance, including 
standards, ethics and probity.

e) granting dispensations to Councillors from requirements relating to interests 
set out in the Members' Code of Conduct;  

f) to receive complaints about the conduct of the Council or any of its 
committees, subcommittees, members (whether or not they relate to 
maladministration) including the power to investigate any complaint against 
any member of the Council, and any facts brought to the attention of the 
Committee by the Council's Monitoring Officer   

g) to review complaints handling and Ombudsman investigations 

h) to keep under review the Council's "whistle blowing" policy 

2. To consider, approve or otherwise deal with:
 

a) The Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report and opinion, and a summary of 
Internal Audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can 
give over the Council's corporate governance arrangements.  



b) Summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.  

c) Reports dealing with the management and performance of the providers of 
Internal Audit services.  

d) Reports from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not implemented 
within a reasonable timescale.  

e) The External Auditor's annual letter, relevant reports, and the reports to those 
charged with governance.  

f) Specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.  

 
3.        To receive and comment upon the Audit Strategy.    

4.        To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 
           gives value for money.  
 
5.        To commission work from Internal Audit in accordance with the agreed Audit    
           Strategy, and External Audit. 
 
6.        To consider amendments to the Council's Constitution and to make such 
           recommendations to the Council as may be necessary unless 
           otherwise delegated to the Monitoring Officer.

7.        To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive, or any Council 
           committee.  
 
8.        To monitor and take decisions in respect of the effective development and 
           operation of risk management and corporate governance in the Council.  
 
9.        To monitor and take decisions in respect of the Council policies on the anti-
           fraud and anti-corruption strategy   
 
10.      To oversee and take decisions in respect of the authority's Annual 
           Governance Statement.  
 
11.      To consider and take decisions in respect of the Council's arrangements for 
           corporate governance and agreeing necessary actions to ensure compliance 
           with best practice.  
 
12.     To consider the Council's compliance with its own and other published 
           standards and controls, including the Annual Governance Statement and to    
           make recommendations where appropriate .  
 

13.      To review the Annual Statement of Accounts. Specifically, to consider 
           whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether 
           there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that



           need to be brought to the attention of the Council.  
 
14.     To consider the External Auditor's report to those charged with governance on 
           issues arising from the audit of the accounts and to make recommendations 
           where appropriate.  
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 External Audit: Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report 2017-18 and Audit Planning Report 2018-19
	External Audit - 2017-18 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report
	External Audit - 2018-19 Audit Planning Report

	7 Internal Audit Monitoring Statement from 1st April 2018  - 4th February 2019
	8 UPDATE REPORT ON THE CURRENT STATUS OF BUSINESS CONTINUITY ARRANGEMENTS AND PLANS WITHIN THE COUNCIL
	9 Code of Conduct, Local Assessment Criteria and Terms of Reference Update
	STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  TOR


